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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
City of Mexico Beach, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Mexico Beach, Florida (the City), as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. Those financial
statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated February 23, 2007, on our consideration of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.




Management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8, is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The comparative schedules are
presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements of the City. The comparative schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Carn, /?57?4.) £ Drgrams, t.c.c.

Panama City, Florida
February 23, 2007
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management's discussion and analysis provide an easily readable analysis of the City’s
financial activities. The analysis provides summary financial information for the City and should
be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

¢ Total assets of the City exceeded total liabilities by $6,504,122 (net assets). Of this
amount, $436,763 is unrestricted net assets for governmental activities and $677,985 is
unrestricted net assets for business-type activities, $147,746 is restricted net assets for
governmental activities and $1,205,731 is restricted net assets for business-type
activities.

e Total net assets increased by $199,126. Of this amount, $165,194 is attributable to
governmental activities and $33,932 is attributable to business-type activities.

* As of September 30, 2006, the general fund’s unreserved fund balance was $610,709 or
21% of total general fund expenditures.

* Governmental activities revenues increased to $2,990,140 or 23%, while governmental
activities expenditures increased 21% to $2,824,946. Business-type activities revenues
increased to $2,445,840 or 5%, while business-type activities expenditures increased
2% to $2,411,908.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic
financial statements. The government-wide financial statements present an overall picture of the
City’s financial position and results of operations. The fund financial statements present financial
information for the City’s major funds. The notes to basic financial statements provide additional
information concerning the City’s finances that are not otherwise disclosed in the government-
wide or fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and statement of
activities. These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
financial position, in a manner similar to that of private-sector companies. Emphasis is placed
on the net assets of governmental activities and business-type activities, as well as the change
in net assets. Governmental activities are primarily supported by gross receipts taxes, utility
taxes and franchise fees, and state shared revenues, while business-type activities are
supported by charges to the users of those particular activities, such as water, sewer, and
sanitation charges.

The statement of net assets presents information on all assets and liabilities of the City, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Assets, liabilities and net assets are reported
separately for governmental activities and business-type activities. Increases or decreases in
net assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s improving or declining financial
position.




The statement of activities presents information on all revenues and expenditures of the City
and the change in net assets for the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenditures are reported in the statement of activities for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected fees and earned,
but unused vacation/sick leave).

Expenditures are reported by major function, along with program revenues relating to those
functions, providing the net cost of all functions provided by the City. In order to better
understand the City’s operations, governmental activities expenditures include among others,
general government services, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation.
Business-type activities expenses, which are financed by user fees and charges, include water
and sewer, and sanitation services.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific purposes or objectives. Individual funds have been
established by the City to account for revenues that are restricted to certain uses, or to comply
with legal requirements. The two major categories of funds found in the City’'s fund financial
statements include: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Fund financial statements provide financial information for the City’s major funds and more
detailed information about the City’s activities. Governmental fund financial statements provide
information on the current assets and liabilities of the funds, changes in current financial
resources (revenues and expenditures), and current available resources. The proprietary funds
financial statements provide information on all assets and liabilities of the funds, changes in the
economic resources (revenues and expenses), and total economic resources.

Fund financial statements for all governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The City’'s general fund includes a
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances-budget and actual. For the
proprietary funds, a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes
in fund net assets, and a statement of cash flows are presented.

The government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements provide different
presentations of the City's financial position. Categorized by governmental activities and
business-type activities, the government-wide financial statements provide an overall picture of
the City’s financial standing. These statements, which are comparable to private-sector
companies, provide a good understanding of the City’s overall financial health and present the
means used to pay for various activities, or functions provided by the City. All assets of the City,
including buildings, land, and infrastructure are reported in the statement of net assets, as well
as all liabilities, including outstanding principal on bonds, capital leases, and future employee
benefits obligated but not yet paid by the City. The statement of activities includes depreciation
on all long lived assets of the City, but all transactions between different functions of the City
have been eliminated to avoid “doubling up” the revenues and expenditures. The fund financial
statements provide a presentation of the City’s major funds, along with a column for all non-
major funds. In the case of governmental activities, outlays for long lived assets are reported as
expenditures and long-term liabilities, such as revenue bonds, are not included in the fund
financial statements. To facilitate a comparison between the fund financial statements and the
government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is provided.



The notes to basic financial statements provide additional detail concerning the financial
activities and financial balances of the City. Additional information about the accounting
practices of the City, investments of the City, and long-term debt are just a few of the items
included in the notes to basic financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the City

The following schedule provides a summary of the assets, liabilities and net assets of the City at
September 30, 2006. The City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its governmental and business-type
activities.

City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Net Assets
Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities Total
Current and other assets 3 716,387 $ 2,042,189 $ 2,758,576
Capital assets 2,849 574 10,846,159 13,695,733
Total assets 3,565,961 12,888,348 16,454,309
Current liabilities
(payable from current assets) 277,040 375,881 652,921
Current liabilities
(payable from restricted assets) - 29,038 29,038
Non current liabilities 1,113,201 8,155,027 9,268,228
Total liabilities 1,390,241 8,559,946 9,950,187
Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 1,591,211 2,444 686 4,035,897
Net assets-restricted 147,746 1,205,731 1,353,477
Net assets-unrestricted 436,763 677,985 1,114,748
Total net assets $ 2,175,720 $ 4,328,402 $ 6,504,122

Investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment), net of any related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets, represents the City's largest portion of net
assets (62%). These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. It should be noted, that although the City's
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

The restricted net assets, representing 21% of the City’s net assets, are subject to external
restrictions, and thus are limited as to how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($1,114,748) may be used to help meet the government’'s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

Governmental activities’ noncurrent liabilities increased due to a new bank note ($99,756)
reduced by principal reductions ($157,256) of long-term obligations.
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The following schedule provides a summary of the changes in net assets for the year ended
September 30, 2006.

City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Changes in Net Assets

Business-
Governmental type
Activities Activities Total

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 397,054 $ 2,418,031 $ 2,815,085

Operating grants/contributions 821,428 - 821,428

Capital grants/contributions 47,038 - 47,038
General revenues:

Ad valorem 1,243,705 - 1,243,705

Utility taxes/franchise fees 385,837 - 385,837

Interest 15,620 29,138 44,758

Other 79,458 (1,329) 78,129

Total revenues 2,990,140 2,445 840 5,435,980

Expenses:

General government 613,932 - 613,932

Public safety 665,345 - 665,345

Highways and streets 228,785 - 228,785

Maintenance 152,347 - 152,347

Parks and recreation 706,969 - 706,969

Physical environment 422,065 - 422,065

Interest on long-term debt 35,503 - 35,503

Water - 982,223 982,223

Sewer - 1,009,994 1,009,994

Sanitation - 419 691 419,691

Total expenses 2,824,946 2,411,908 5,236,854

Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 165,194 $ 33,932 $ 199,126

Governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses by $165,194, while business-type
activities revenues exceeded expenses by $33,932. Total revenues increased $664,679 from
the previous year. Total expenses increased $533,718 from the previous year.

54% of the revenues for governmental activities were generated by taxes, while most of the
governmental resources were expended for general government (22%), public safety (24%),
parks and recreation (25%), and physical environment (15%).

Charges for services provide 99% of the revenues for business-type activities.



Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The main operating fund of the City is the general fund. As of September 30, 2006, total assets
were $723,626 and total liabilities were $112,917. At the end of fiscal year 2006, unreserved
fund balance of the general fund was $610,709.

The general fund budget was amended during the year to reflect decreases in revenue and the
corresponding decreases in expenditures which resulted from the decrease in available funds.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in greater detail. All proprietary funds are reported as major funds.

Unrestricted net assets of proprietary funds at the end of the year are presented below:

Unrestricted

Net Assets
Fund
Water $ 570,114
Sewer 34,459
Sanitation 73,412
Total $ 677,985

The Water Fund is used to account for the operations and maintenance of the City’'s water
system.

The Sewer fund is used to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's sewer
system.

The City’s Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City’s sanitation
system.

Capital Assets Activity

The following schedule provides a summary of the City’s capital assets activity. The City’s total
investment in capital assets for both its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2006, was $13,695,733 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure.



Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

September 30, 2006

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Land $ 150,000 $ 288,191 $ 438,191
Buildings 432,074 - 432,074
Improvements 1,381,636 10,355,439 11,737,075
Machinery and equipment 885,864 202,529 1,088,393
Total $ 2,849,574 $ 10,846,159 $ 13,695,733

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Debt Management
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bond debt outstanding of $3,380,080.
This debt amount represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue
bonds).

Outstanding Bond Debt

September 30, 2006

Water Fund Sewer Fund Total

Revenue bonds $ 1196980 $ 2,183,100 $ 3,380,080

The business-type activities bonds maintain an “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor’s, and an
“AAA” rating from Fitch.

The Florida Constitution and the City of Mexico Beach set no legal debt limits for revenue
bonds. More detailed information about the City’s liabilities is presented in Notes 8 and 9 of the
notes to the basic financial statements.

Other Financial Information

The City’s economy remained strong during the current fiscal year. Despite national security
and travel worries, and rising gas prices, tourism continued to be strong. The City’s gross
receipts tax collections typically fluctuate with the tourism industry.

This report was prepared by the City’s finance department. Questions concerning this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to City of Mexico Beach, P.O. Box
13425, Mexico Beach, Florida 32410, attention: Debbie McLeod.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2006

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 391,066 $ 171,349 $ 562,415
Accounts receivable (net) 27,837 205,762 233,599
Due from other funds 121,330 (121,330) -
Due from other governmental units 19,586 39 19,625
Prepaid expenses - 11,465 11,465
Fuel inventory 8,821 - 8,821
Total current assets (unrestricted) 568,640 267,285 835,925
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 147 747 1,600,500 1,748,247
Total current assets (restricted) 147,747 1,600,500 1,748,247
Total current assets 716,387 1,867,785 2,584,172
Noncurrent assets
Unamortized loan costs - 120,217 120,217
Capacity rights - 54,187 54,187
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 2,849,574 10,846,159 13,695,733
Total noncurrent assets 2,849,574 11,020,563 13,870,137
Total assets 3,565,961 12,888,348 16,454,309
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 53,150 92,913 146,063
Payroll liabilities 10,171 12,181 22,352
Deferred revenue 42 357 - 42 357
Accrued interest - 29,038 29,038
Bonds payable - 64,500 64,500
Capital leases payable 2,579 - 2,579
Notes payable 168,783 206,287 375,070
Total current liabilities 277,040 404,919 681,959
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 26,200 24 341 50,541
Notes payable 1,087,001 4,815,106 5,902,107
Revenue bonds payable - 3,315,580 3,315,580
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,113,201 8,155,027 9,268,228
Total liabilities 1,390,241 8,559,946 9,950,187
Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 1,591,211 2,444 686 4,035,897
Restricted for:
Bond retirement - 207,128 207,128
Impact fees 147,746 998,603 1,146,349
Unrestricted 436,763 677,985 1,114,748
Total net assets $ 2,175,720 $ 4328402 $ 6,504,122

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2006

General
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 391,066
Accounts receivable (net) 27,837
Due from other governments 19,586
Due from other funds 128,569
Fuel inventory 8,821
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 147,747
Total assets $ 723,626
Liabilities and fund balance
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 53,150
Accrued expenses 10,171
Due to other funds 7,239
Deferred revenue 42 357
Total liabilities 112,917
Fund balance
Unreserved 610,709
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 2,849,574
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (1,284,563)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 2,175,720

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006

General
Revenues
Taxes $ 1,540,498
Licenses and permits 317,085
Intergovernmental 942 971
Fines and forfeitures 9,877
Charges for services 24,313
Miscellaneous revenues 154,067
Total revenues 2,988,811
Expenditures
Current operating
General government 580,293
Public safety 556,652
Highways and streets 211,622
Physical environment 301,127
Human services 162,347
Parks and recreation 694,961
Capital outlay 182,915
Debt service 192,760
Total expenditures 2,882,677
Excess (Deficit) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 106,134
Other financing sources
Transfer from sewer 1,329
Instaliment loan proceeds 99,756
Total other financing sources 101,085
Excess (Deficit) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures 207,219
Fund balance - beginning 403,490
Fund balance - ending $ 610,709

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental

Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 10) are
different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 207,219

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the costs of these assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (123,806)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. 24,281

The issuance of long-term debt (i.e. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also
governmental funds report the effect of the issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long term
debt and related items. 57,500

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 165,194

See accompanying notes
13




City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget-
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 1,567,122 $ 1,553,042 $ 1,540,498 $ (12,544)
Licenses and permits 699,500 212,650 317,085 104,435
Intergovernmental 2,029,100 952,257 942,971 (9,286)
Fines and forfeitures 18,000 8,000 9,877 877
Charges for services 26,005 28,727 24,313 (4,414)
Miscellaneous revenues 155,000 506,254 154,067 (352,187)
Total revenues 4,494,727 3,261,930 2,988,811 (273,119)
Expenditures
Current
General government 652,822 654,785 590,293 64,492
Public safety 654,659 649,531 556,652 92,879
Highways and streets 172,760 200,274 211,622 (11,348)
Physical environment 176,526 340,117 301,127 38,990
Human services 180,367 187,044 152,347 34,697
Culture and recreation 132,435 206,808 694,961 (488,153)
Capital outlay 2,007,700 795,371 182,815 612,456
Debt service 45,000 233,000 192,760 40,240
Total expenditures 4,022,269 3,266,930 2,882,677 384,253
Excess (Deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 472,458 (5,000) 106,134 111,134
Other financing sources
Transfers - (110,000) 1,329 111,329
Instaliment loan proceeds - 115,000 99,756 (15,244)
Total other financing sources - 5,000 101,085 96,085
Net change in fund balance 472,458 - 207,219 207,219
Fund balance - beginning 403,490 403,490 403,490 -
Fund balance - ending $ 875,948 $ 403,490 $ 610,709 $ 207,219

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities / Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Sanitation Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,509 22,354 $ 50,486 $ 171,349
Accounts receivable (net) 87,105 77,140 41,517 205,762
Due from other funds 283,591 5,916 - 289,507
Due from other govemments 39 - - 39
Prepaid insurance 7,517 3,948 - 11,465
Total current assets 476,761 109,358 92,003 678,122
Restricted assets - cash
Bond and interest sinking 113,492 122,674 - 236,166
Impact fees 578,035 420,568 - 998,603
Renewal, replacement, and reserve 114,549 230,656 20,526 365,731
Total restricted assets - cash 806,076 773,898 20,526 1,600,500
Noncurrent assets
Unamortized loan costs 18,300 101,917 - 120,217
Capacity rights - 54,187 - 54,187
Property, plant, and equipment 6,368,419 7,144,328 503,797 14,016,544
Less accumulated depreciation (1,575,105) (1,198,506) (396,774) (3,170,385)
Total noncurrent assets 4,811,614 6,101,926 107,023 11,020,563
Total assets 6,094,451 6,985,182 219,552 13,299,185
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 6,448 63,438 23,027 92,913
Accrued expenses 9,850 230 2,101 12,181
Due to other funds 10,794 393,868 6,175 410,837
Notes payable, current portion 136,720 69,567 - 206,287
Revenue bonds payable, current portion 37,000 27,500 - 64,500
Total current liabilities 200,812 554,603 31,303 786,718
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accrued interest 20,126 8,912 - 29,038
Total current liabilities payable from
restricted assets 20,126 8,912 - 29,038
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 12,404 4,123 7,814 24,341
Notes payable - due after one year 2,715,768 2,099,338 - 4,815,106
Bonds payable - due after one year 1,159,980 2,155,600 - 3,315,580
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,888,152 4,259,061 7,814 8,155,027
Total liabilities 4,109,090 4,822,576 39,117 8,970,783
Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 743,846 1,593,817 107,023 2,444,686
Restricted for:
Bond retirement 93,366 113,762 - 207,128
Impact fees 578,035 420,568 - 998,603
Unrestricted 570,114 34,459 73,412 677,985
Total net assets $ 1,985,361 2,162,606 3 180,435 $ 4,328,402

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities / Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Sanitation Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 828964 § 693,130 $ 407521 $ 1929615
New installations 165,039 - - 165,039
Reconnections 12,038 - - 12,038
impact fees - 240,481 - 240,481
Other utility income 44 824 - 26,034 70,858
Total operating revenues 1,050,865 933,611 433,555 2,418,031
Operating expenses
Personal services 356,266 81,782 252,042 690,090
Professional services 24275 16,281 8,025 48,581
Office supplies 1,178 - - 1,178
Utilities 66,257 16,944 197 83,398
Insurance 16,800 21,452 8,613 46,865
Repairs and maintenance 28,078 43,115 11,671 82,864
Operating supplies 26,135 44,694 22975 93,804
Communication services 4,139 1,344 1,351 6,834
Public utility services 89,024 337,036 - 426,060
Tipping fees - - 68,197 68,197
Transportation 309 309 234 852
” Loan servicing costs - 26,773 - 26,773
Rentals 1,015 - 8,128 9,143
Printing and binding 1,699 549 95 2,343
Miscellaneous 16,748 7,629 1,216 25,593
Amortization 967 7,016 - 7,983
Depreciation = 174,266 wa 213,144 34,033 421,443
Bad debts 5,750 4,258 2,858 12,866
Total operating expenses = 812,906 822,326 419,635 2,054,867
Operating income 237,959 111,285 13,820 363,164
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
interest income 14,204 14,630 304 29,138
Interest expense (169,316) (187,668) (57) (357,041)
Transfers in - 30,000 - 30,000
Transfers out (30,000) - (1,329) (31,329)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (185,112) (143,038) (1,082) (329,232)
Net income (loss) 52,847 (31,753) 12,838 33,932
Net assets - beginning 1,832,514 2,194,359 167,597 4,294,470
Net assets - ending $ 1985361 § 2162606 $§ 180435 $ 4328402

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Business-type Activities / Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Sanitation Total
Operating activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 1,018,763 $ 927,423 % 429,379 $ 2,375,565
Payments to suppliers and others (339,228) (442,703) (154,914) (936,845)
Payments for personal services (356,266) (81,782) (252,042) (690,090)
Net cash provided by operating activities 323,269 402,938 22,423 748,630
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in - 30,000 - 30,000
Transfers out (30,000) - (1,329) (31,329)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (30,000) 30,000 (1,329) (1,329)
Capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on revenue bonds (35,000) (26,500) - (61,500)
Principal paid on notes and leases (132,214) (65,940) - (198,154)
Interest paid on bonds, notes and leases (169,316) (187,668) (57) (357,041)
Purchase of capital assets (100,946) (4,170) (97,588) (202,704)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (437,476) (284,278) (97,645) (819,399)
Investing activities
Interest received 14,204 14,630 304 29,138
Net cash provided by investing activities 14,204 14,630 304 29,138
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (130,003) 163,290 (76,247) (42,960)
Cash and cash equivaients, beginning 1,034,588 632,962 147,259 1,814,809
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 904585 $ 796,252 $ 71,012 $ 1,771,849
Classified as cash
Current assets - cash and cash equivalents $ 98,509 $ 22354 % 50,486 $ 171,349
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 806,076 773,898 20,526 1,600,500

$ 904585 $ 796252 § 71,012 § 1,771,849

Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net operating income $ 237959 $ 111285 § 13,920 $ 363,164
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Amortization 967 7,016 - 7,983
Depreciation 174,266 213,144 34,033 421,443
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (7,484) (6,188) (4,176) (17,848)
Due from other funds (24,579) - - (24,579)
Due from other governments (39) - - (39)
Prepaid assets (7,518) (3,948) 13,968 2,502
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (63,092) (49,179) (35,639) (147,910)
Accrued expenses 8,167 4) (276) 7,887
Compensated absences 12,404 4,123 7,814 24,341
Due to other funds (7,782) 126,689 (7,221) 111,686
Total adjustments 85,310 291,653 8,503 385,466
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 323269 § 402,938 $ 22423 $ 748630

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. GASB is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. For the
reporting year ended September 30, 20086, the City has implanted GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial ~Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for-State and Local
Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; and Interpretation No. 6,
Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Govemment Fund
Financial Statements. Significant City accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The City of Mexico Beach, Florida (the City) is located in eastern Bay County in northwest Florida
along the Gulf of Mexico. The City operates under an elected Mayor-Council and a four-member
City Council, and serves approximately 1,500 residents by providing human services, community
enrichment and development, and law enforcement and fire safety, and general administrative
services. In addition, the City operates a water, sewer and sanitation utility.

As outlined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The
Reporting Entity, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, and its
component units, for which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable.
Also included are other entities whose exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Each potential component unit is individually evaluated
using specific criteria outlined in GASB Statement No. 14 to determine whether the entity is: (a)
part of the primary government; (b) a component unit which should be included in the reporting
entity (blended or discretely presented): (c) an organization which should be excluded from the
reporting entity entirely.

The principal criteria for classifying a potential component unit include the legal separateness of the
organization, the financial accountability of the primary government for the potential component unit
resulting from either the primary government’s ability to impose its will on the potential component
unit, or the potential component unit’s fiscal dependency on the primary government.

A nonprofit corporation formed by the City’s volunteer fire department is considered a component
unit of the City. However, its operations and assets are not material to the City’s financial
statements. Accordingly, the volunteer fire department’s operations and financial position are not
included in the City’s financial statements.

There were no entities for which there were positive responses to specific criteria used for
establishing oversight responsibility that were excluded form the City’s financial statements. The
City did not participate in any joint ventures during the year.

The City has issued certain revenue bonds for the purpose of financing of healthcare facilities
owned by nonprofit organizations as discussed in note 10. The City is not liable for the repayment
of such debt and accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and
its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to
a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from the legally separate component units, if any, for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct éxpenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (a) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment; and, (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

* General Fund - The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
resources traditionally associated with governments except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law
or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. The majority of
current operating expenditures of the City other than proprietary fund activities are financed
through revenues received by the general fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

* The Water Fund accounts for costs for collection, treatment and distribution of water
services.

* The Sewer Fund accounts for the costs to provide wastewater and sanitary sewer services.

* The Sanitation Fund accounts for the costs to provide sanitation services.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial

statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered to
be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded only
when payment is due.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for water,
sewer, and sanitation service. Operating expenses of the enterprise fund include the cost of
sales and services, administrative éxpenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Enterprise Activities

For enterprise activities, the City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements. Additionally, the
City applies pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor bodies, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, the City
has elected not to apply all FASB statements and interpretations issued after November 30,
1989.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are legally adopted for all governmental funds and all proprietary funds.
Budgets are prepared and adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Florida Statutes provide that it is unlawful to make expenditures that exceed the total amount
budgeted for each fund. Chapter 129, Florida Statutes, governs the manner in which the budget
may be legally amended once it has been approved. Therefore, the fund level is the legal level
of control for budget considerations according to Florida Statute.

The City budgets expenditures at the department level. Only the City Council can approve
budget amendments that change the total approved budget appropriation of an individual
department. Department managers can transfer appropriations within the departmental budget,
but cannot change the total appropriation of an individual department without the approval of the
City Council.

If, during the fiscal year, additional revenue becomes available for appropriations in excess of
those estimated in the budget, the Council by resolution may make supplemental appropriations
for the year up to the amount of such excess. During the current fiscal year, various
supplemental appropriations were approved by the Council in accordance with Florida Statutes.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgetary data presented in the accompanying basic financial statements in the final budgeted
amounts column represents the final budgetary data. In this column the effects of budget
amendments have been applied to original budgetary data.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is used in the governmental funds. However, all encumbrances lapse at year end
and, accordingly, a reserve for encumbrances is not reported in the accompanying basic
financial statements.

Encumbrances are reestablished at the beginning of the fiscal year if funds are appropriated in
the annual budget. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Cash and Temporary Cash Investments

The City considers cash and all investments with an original maturity of three months or less
from the date of acquisition to be cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted.

Receivable

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The City estimates there are no material
uncollectible accounts. Therefore, the City is of the opinion an allowance for doubtful accounts
is not necessary. Unbilled amounts are not recorded.

Due From (To) Other Funds
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds". Any residual balances

outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
governmental wide financial statements as "internal balances".

Inventories

Inventory items of materials and supplies, which are not significant in amount, are considered
expenditures when purchased in the governmental funds. Inventory in the proprietary funds
consists of utility supplies held for consumption or capital improvements and are valued at the
lower of cost market using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Prepaid Expenses

General fund expenditures for insurance and similar services extended over more than one
accounting year are accounted for as expenditures in the year paid.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Amortization and Deferred Charges

Deferred charges consist of bond issue costs and are being amortized over the lives of the
respective bond issues using the straight-line method.

Reserves and Designations of Fund Equity

Reserves indicate that portion of fund balance or net assets that is not available for
appropriation or which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The description of each
reserve indicates the purpose for which each was intended. Designated portions of fund equity
represent management's tentative future spending plans. Such designations should be clearly
distinguished from reserves, since managerial plans are subject to change and may never be
legally authorized or result in actual expenditures.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads,
bridges, infrastructure, water and sewer distribution systems and similar items), are reported in
the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. Property, plant, and equipment with initial individual costs that exceed $750 and
estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded as capital assets. Roads, bridges, and
sidewalks are capitalized when their initial costs exceed $25,000 and possess estimated useful
lives of more than one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets
effective October 1, 2003. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically
been reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is not
required by the City.

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives.

Buildings 20-50 Years
Improvements other than buildings 20-50 Years
Equipment 3-15 Years
infrastructure 10-50 Years

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund in the fund financial
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issue costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance
costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Unamortized Bond Costs

Bond issuance costs and legal fees associated with the issuance of proprietary fund revenue
bonds are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

Unamortized Bond Discounts

Bond discounts associated with the issuance of proprietary fund revenue bonds are amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. For financial reporting, unamortized
bond discounts are netted against the applicable long-term debit.

Compensated Absences

All full-time employees earn two weeks vacation per year (which cannot be taken until 6 months
of probationary service are completed), 14 days after 5 years, 18 days after 11 years, and 20
days after 15 years. Annual leave may be accumulated at a maximum of 25 days per calendar
year. Employees who have completed their probationary period are eligible for payment of
accumulated annual leave not to exceed a maximum of 25 days upon their separation from the
City.

Employees with one year of service may request payment of their hourly rate times a maximum
of 50 percent of the employee's annually accrued vacation time up to sixty hours per year.

Six hours of sick leave is earned for each month of employment and is cumulative. Sick leave
can not be used until the probationary status is completed and regular status is attained. Sick
leave is only eligible for permanent employees. Employees who have worked for the City more
than ten years are eligible for payment of unused sick leave and shall be compensated at the
employee's current regular hourly rate of pay for one-fifth (1/5) of all unused sick leave credits
accrued. Employees with less than ten years of service shall not be compensated.

Both the current and long-term portion of compensated absences are accrued and reported in
the government-wide financial statements. No expenditure is reported in the government fund
level statements for these amounts until payment is made. Proprietary fund types accrue sick
leave and vacation benefits in the period they are earned. Compensated absences liability is
based on current rates of pay. This is accounted for pursuant to GASB Statement No. 1 6,
Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Property Taxes

Property taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal property within the City.
Property values are determined by the Bay County Property Appraiser. Florida Statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills for general operations. The City's
millage rate for the year ended September 30, 2006, was 4.35% mills. The tax levy of the City is
established by the City Council prior to October 1 of each year.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property tax revenue is recognized when taxes are received by the City. Because any
delinquent taxes collected after September 30 would not be material, delinquent taxes due are
not accrued at year end. The City's tax calendar is as follows:

Lien date: January 1

Levy date: Not later than October 1

Delinquent date: April 1 of year following assessment
Discount periods: November through February (up to 4%)
Collection dates: November 1 through March 31

Property taxes are collected by the Bay County Tax Collector. State Law provides for
enforcement of collection of personal property taxes by seizure of the property to satisfy unpaid
taxes and for enforcement of collection of real property taxes by the sale of interest bearing tax
certificates.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues reported in the government-wide financial statements represent unearned
revenues. The deferred revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are
earned in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Deferred revenues reported in
governmental fund financial statements represent unearned revenues or revenues which are
measurable but not available, and in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting,
are reported as deferred revenues.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets of the various funds are required by resolutions and ordinances to be set aside
and used for specific purposes: thus, they are not available to be used for general operations.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets:

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains, "capital assets used in
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds."
The details of this $2,849,574 difference are as follows:

Cost of capital assets $ 4,163,924
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,314,350)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total govermnmental funds to
arrive at net assets - governmental activities $ 2,849,574

Another element of that reconciliation states, "long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds." The details of this $1,284,563
difference are as follows:

Notes and revenue bonds payable $ 1,255,784
Capital leases 2,579
Compensated absences 26,200

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental fund to arrive at
net assets - governmental activities $ 1,284,563

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

The governmental funds statement of révenues, expenditures, and changes in fund, balance
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance - total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains, "governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of these assets are
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of
this $(123,806) difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 182,915
Depreciation expense (306,721)

Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental aclivities $ (123,806)

Another element of that reconciliation states, "some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resource and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $24,281 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $ 24,281

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balance - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental
activities $ 24,281
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Another element of that reconciliation states, "the issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities." The details of
this $57,500 difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred

Notes issued $ (99,756)
Principal repayments

Capital leases 3,573

Notes payable 153,683

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balance - total
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental
activities $ 57,500

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
tem investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Investment Policies

Florida Statutes, Section 218.415, authorizes the City to invest surplus funds in the
following:

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (State Board of Administration) or
any intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida interlocal
Cooperation Act as provided in s. 163.01.

Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest
credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

Interest — bearing time deposits or savings accounts in state-certified qualified public
depositories as defined in s. 280.02.

Direct obligations of the United States Treasury.

Federal agencies and instrumentalities.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Securities of, or other interests in, any open-end or closed-end management-type
investment company or investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act
of 1940, 15 U.S.C. ss. 80a-1 et Seq., as amended from time to time, provided that the
portfolio of such investment company or investment trust is limited to obligations of the
United States Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such United States Government obligations, and
provided that such investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such
collateral either directly or through an authorized custodian.

There were no investments at September 30, 2006.
Interest Rate Risks

At September 30, 2006, the City did not hold any investments that were considered to be
an interest rate risk.

Credit Risks

At September 30, 2006, the City did not hold any investments that were considered to be a
credit risk.

Custodial Risks

At September 30, 2006, the City did not hold any deposits or investments that were
considered to be a custodial risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk
As September 30, 2006, the City did not hold any investments that were considered to be
a concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 4 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30, 2006, accounts receivable in the governmental funds are summarized as
follows:

Total accounts receivable (franchise fee and utility tax) $ 27,837
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts -

Net accounts receivable $ 27,837

27




City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

At September 30, 2006, accounts receivable in the proprietary funds are summarized as
follows:

Total accounts receivable (water, sanitation and sewer) $ 205,762
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts -

Net accounts receivable $ 205,762

NOTE 5§ - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2006 is as follows:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

General fund $ 128,569 $ 7,239
Water fund 283,591 10,794
Sewer fund 5,916 393,868
Sanitation fund - 6,175

Total $ 418,076 $ 418,076

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2005 Increases Decreases 2006
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 150,000 $ - $ -9 150,000
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 150,000 - - 150,000
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 472,633 - - 472,633
Improvements 1,589,761 44,600 - 1,634,361
Machinery and equipment 1,768,616 138,314 - 1,906,930
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 3,831,010 182,914 - 4,013,924
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

September 30, September 30,
2005 Increases Decreases 2006
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings $ (31,118) $ (9,441) $ -$ (40,559)
Improvements (159,064) (93,661) - (252,725)
Machinery and equipment (817,447)  (203,619) - (1,021,066)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,007,629)  (306,721) - (1,314,350)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 2,823,381 (123,807) - 2,699,574
Total governmental activities' capital
assets, net $_ 2973381 $(123,807) $ -$ 2849574
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land 3 288,191 $ - § -3 288,191
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 288,191 - - 288,191
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buiidings 10,606 - - 10,606
Improvements 12,777,014 105,117 - 12,882,131
Machinery and equipment 738,027 97,588 - 835,615
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 13,525,647 202,705 - 13,728,352
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (10,606) - - (10,606)
improvements (2,147,363) (379,329) - (2,526,692)
Machinery and equipment (590,973) (42,113) - (633,086)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,748,942)  (421,442) - (3,170,384)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 10,776,705 (218,737) - 10,557,968
Total business-type activities' capital
assets, net $ 1106489 $ (218,737) $ - $ 10,846,159
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Sanitation Sewer Water
Fund Fund Fund Total

Land $ - $ 270426 $ 17,765 § 288,191
Buildings - - 10,606 10,606
Improvements - 6,817,054 6,065,077 12,882,131
Machinery and equipment 503,797 56,848 274,970 835,615

Total 503,797 7,144,328 6,368,418 14,016,543
Less: accumulated depreciation

Buildings - - (10,606) (10,606)

Improvements - (1,185,303)  (1,341,389) (2,526,692)

Machinery and equipment (396,772) (13,204) (223,110) (633,086)

Total accumulated depreciation (396,772) (1,198,507) (1,575,105) (3,170,384)

Total business-type activities' capital

assets, net $ 107,025 $5945821 $ 4793313 $ 10,846,159

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

General government $ 47,919
Public safety 108,693
Highways and streets 17,163
Physical environment 120,938
Parks and recreation 12,008

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 306,721

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

Sanitation $ 34,032
Sewer 213,144
Water 174,266

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 3 421,442

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES

The City has entered into lease agreements to finance equipment. These lease agreements qualify
as capital leases for accounting purposes and have been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The cost of assets acquired through
capital leases are as follows:
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL LEASES (CONTINUED)

General
Fund
Equipment $ 12,058
Less accumulated depreciation (7,761)
Net $ 4,297

The capital leases expire at various dates through 2008. The future minimum lease obligations and

the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2006 were as
follows:

Year Ending General
September 30, Fund
2007 $ 1,413
2008 1,166
Total minimum lease payments 2,579
Less amount representing interest (269)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 2,310

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT -~ GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2005 Increase  (Reductions) 2006
Note payable to City of Gulf Breeze,
Florida Capital funding loan program
(See Note 10 (A)). $ 777,710 $ - $ (19,252 $ 758,458
Note payable for purchase of (5) vehicles,
payable in quarterly installments of
$8,829, including 6.36% interest. 91,434 - (32,074) 59,360
Lease obligation for purchase of copier,
monthly payments of $136, including
11% interest. 3,844 - (1,265) 2,579
Note payable for the purchase of a
dredge, payable in quarterly instaliments
of $14,077, including 4.17% interest. 297,544 - (44,593) 252,951
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT — GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2005 Increase  ( Reductions) 2006

Note payable for the purchase of (2)

tractors and (1) vehicle, payable in

quarterly  instalilments  of $5,880, % 71638 % - % (21,371) 50,267
including 4.17% interest

Note payable for the purchase of (4)
automobiles, payable in quarterly

installments of $5,445, including 4.61%

interest. 47,254 - (20,618) 26,636

Note payable for the purchase of a beach
rake, payable in monthly payments of
$1,002, including 4.54% interest. 24,130 - (6,692) 17,438

Lease obligations for purchase of copier,
monthly payments of $169, including
4.1% interest. 2,309 - (2,309) -

Note payable for the purchase of (2)
automobiles and (1) tractor, payable in
monthly installments of $5,543, including
6.41% interest. - 99,756 (9,083) 90,673

Liability for com ensated absences 50,482 - 24,282 26,200

Total governmental activities long-term
obligations $1366,345 3 99,756 $ (181,539) $ 1,284 562

follows:

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 171362 3 32217 $ 203,579

2008 151,681 26,157 177,838
2009 102,925 21,297 124,222
2010 97,793 17,774 115,567
2011 91,115 14,244 105,359
2012-2016 149,734 55,108 204,842

2017-2021 493,752 38,928 532,680
Compensated absences 26,200 - 26,200
$ 1284562 $ 205,725 § 1,490,287
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Balance Balance
Original October 1, September 30,
Bonds Payable Issue 2005 Increase  (Reductions) 2006

5% to 10.5% Water System

Revenue Bonds, Series

1979, 1980 and 1984,

used to construct and

improve existing water |

system. $3 773200 $ 491380 $ - $ (23000 3 468,380

4.5% Water system Junior
Lien Revenue Bonds,
Series 1995 used to

improve water system. J 829,600 740,600 (12,000) 728,600

1

4.875% Sewer System
Junior Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 2000, used /
to improve sewer system. +/2,303,100 2,209,600 - (26,500) 2,183,100

Total bonds payable — enterprise funds $3441580 $ - $ (615000 $ 3,380,080

A synopsis of long-term debt convenants for the water and sewer bonds follows:

(a) Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1979, 1980, and 1984 - $468,380
balance. These bonds were issued to construct and improve the City's wastewater treatment
facility. The bonds are secured and payable solely by a pledge of the net revenues of the
system. The bonds mature annually through September 1, 2024. Interest at 5% and 10.5% per
annum is payable each September 1. A sinking fund is required to be maintained to accumulate
amounts sufficient to pay principal and interest coming due. In addition, monthly transfers of
$450 to a reserve account are required until a balance of $54,000 is attained.

(@) Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 - $728,600 balance. These bonds were
issued to construct improvements to the water system. The bonds are secured by a pledge of
the net revenues of the water system junior and subordinate to the lien thereon of the prior
obligations. Interest at 4.5% per annum is payable each September 1. A sinking fund is required
to be maintained to accumulate amounts sufficient to pay principal and interest coming due. In
addition, monthly transfers to a reserve account are required.

(b) Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 - $2,183,100 balance The bonds are
secured by a junior and subordinate pledge of gross revenues of the system. The bonds are
due in annual installments each September 1 through September 1, 2039; interest at 4.875%
Per annum is payable annually on September 1.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures,
including the establishment of specified debt service sinking and reserve accounts. The City is
in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM DEBT — BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted cash account balances relating to the bond issues at September 30, 2006, are as
follows:

Series
1979, 1980, Series Series
and 1984 1995 2000 Total
Sinking fund — principal and interest,
including reserves: :
Required $ 58494 / $ 87,4263 101 ,266/ $ 247,186
Actual 54,684 58,808 122,674 236,166
Excess (shortage) $ (3810) $ (28618 $ 21408 $ (11,020)

Debt service requirements to maturity on revenue bonds payable at September 30, 2006 are as
follows:

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 64500 $ 169,212 $ 233712
2008 64,000 166,367 230,367
2009 71,000 162,922 233,922
2010 72,000 159,222 231,222
2011 76,000 155,632 231,632
2012-2016 447 500 714,494 1,161,994
2017-2021 505,000 585,344 1,090,344
2022-2026 469,380 457,205 926,585
2027-2031 562,500 337,180 899,680
2032-2036 654,100 190,316 844,416
2037-2041 394,100 41,500 435,600
$ 3,380,080 $ 3,139,394 $ 6,519,474
Notes Payable
Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2005 Increase (Reductions) 2006
Sewer Fund — Note payable to City of
Gulf Breeze, Fiorida. Principal and
interest  payable in monthly
installments  with final  balloon
payment in May 2021. (See (A) )
below) $ 2168665 $ - § (53661) $ 2,115,004 \,
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM DEBT ~ BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2005 Increase (Reductions) 2006
Water Fund — Note payable to City of

Gulf Breeze, Florida. Principal and

interest  payable in monthly

installments  with  final balloon

payment in May 2021. (See (A)

below) $ 663903 $ - $ (16,427) $ 647,476M

Note payable for purpose of financing
Gulf Breeze loan costs with variable
interest at 2.3%. Principal and P
interest payable monthly. 37,521 - (2,412) 35,109

Florida Department of Environmental
Protection state revolving fund loan.
Repayable over 20 years upon
completion of water system

improvements. (See (B) below) 2,295,024 (104,541) 2,190,483

Note payable in monthly installments of
$397, including interest at 4.61%,
secured by equipment. 15,772 - (4,244) 11,528

Note payable in quarterly instaliments
of $1,485, including interest at
4.61%, secured by vehicles. 12,887

i

(5,623) 7,264

Note payable in quarterly installments
of $2,970, including interest at
4.61%, secured by vehicles. 25,775

(11,246) 14,529

Total notes payable —
enterprise funds $ 5219547 $

$ (198,154) $ 5,021,393

A synopsis of significant enterprise fund notes payable follows:

(A) The note payable to the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida was incurred in 1995 in the principal
amount of $4,190,000 under the Gulf Breeze, Florida Capital Funding Loan Program,
Series 1955A The loan provides for varying interest and is payable in monthly installments
of principal and interest with a final balloon payment of $1,483,135 at maturity in May
2021. The note is secured by a pledge of the net revenues of the water and sewer system.
The note payable is repayable from the following funds:
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

General fund $ 758,458
Sewer fund 2,115,004
Water fund 647,476

$ 3,520,938

The loan proceeds were used by the City for the purchase of real property and dredging of a
canal.

(B) The $2,190,483 note payable to the State Revolving Fund was made to the City for the
purpose of financing the cost of replacing public water system lines. Total borrowings
available to the City under this loan are $2,934,087, which included a loan service fee of
$54,831 and $55,480 in capitalized interest. The loan is repayable over 20 years in
semiannual installments each January 15 and July 15 of $98,796, including interest at
3.08%. The loan is secured by pledged revenues of water charges by the utility fund.

Debt service requirements to maturity on notes payable at September 30, 2006 are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 206287 $ 120577 $ 326,864
2008 200,832 115,146 315,978
2009 202,005 109,923 311,928
2010 207,840 104,657 312,497
2011 216,431 99,244 315,675
2012-2016 1,225,412 406,590 1,632,002
2017-2021 2,592,285 237,047 2,829,332
2022-2026 170,301 3,948 174,249

$ 5021393 § 1,197,132 $ 6,218,525

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City's attorney, the resolution of these matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City of Mexico Beach.
Contingent Liability

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by

grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
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NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Conduit Debt Obligations

The City is authorized by the provisions of Chapter 159, Part Il, Florida Statutes to make and
execute financing agreements which provide assistance to qualified nonprofit corporations to
finance and refinance healthcare facilities and other projects described in Section 159.27,
Florida Statutes. In December 1997, the City sponsored a $150,000,000 local government
floating rate bond issue from which the proceeds are used to make variable rate loans to those
entities described above. Any loans issued for financing these projects are secured by a pledge
of the revenue derived from the projects and security interests in such projects.

The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received
on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

NOTE 11 - FLORIDA MUNICIPAL PENSION TRUST FUND (FMPTF)

All full-time employees of the City with at least six months experience are eligible to participate
in the City of Mexico Beach Pension Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined contribution plan
administered by Core Plan Connect. The City's obligation under the Plan is limited to its match,
currently 4.5%, of participating employee compensation. Employees may elect to contribute and
defer up to 25% of a covered individual's gross wages. Vesting of City contributions occurs over
a five-year period. Total contribution expense for the City during the fiscal year was $18,209,
which is 4.4% of covered payroll. Employee contributions were $20,395, which is 4.9% of
covered payroll. The City's covered payroll for the fiscal year was $418,381 and total payroll for
all employees was $1,242,466.

NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and/or the public; or damage to property
of others; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. Insurance
against losses is provided for the following types of risk:

*  Workers' compensation and employer's liability
* General and automobile liability

* Real and personal property damage

* Public officials’ liability

* Accidental death and dismemberment
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The City's coverage for workers' compensation is under a retrospectively rated policy.
Premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost to-date of the City's experience for this type
of risk.

NOTE 13 — INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS

The City entered into a wastewater treatment contract with Bay County in May 1997, whereby
Bay County will exclusively reserve for the City 323,000 gallons per day of allocated wastewater
treatment capacity of the Military Point Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility. The City has
agreed to pay for such capacity and treatment services for wastewater collected from City
customers.

The City has entered into a memorandum of agreement with the Mexico Beach Community
Development Council, Inc. (the Council) for the maintenance of the City's municipal canal and
beaches. The agreements which are renewable annually, provide for the Council to pay the City
$18,000 and $15,000 annually respectively, for canal and beach maintenance. Additionally, the
City has entered into an agreement with the Council for the maintenance and operation of the
City's public television station granted by franchise agreement, at no cost to the Council.

NOTE 14 - FUND EQUITY

Reserved Fund Equity

Reservations of equity show amounts that are not appropriated for expenditure or are legally
restricted for specific uses. The purpose for each is indicated as follows:

Funds Purpose Amount
General fund Impact fees $ 147,746
Water fund Debt service 93,366
Water fund Impact fees 578,035
Sewer fund Debt service 113,762
Sewer fund Impact fees 420,568
Total reserved fund equity $ 1,353477
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Net Assets - Water
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2006 2005
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,509 §$ 197,001
Accounts receivable (net) 87,105 79,621
Due from other funds 283,591 259,012
Due from other governments 39 -
Prepaid expense 7,517 -
Total current assets 476,761 535,634
Restricted assets - cash
Bond and interest sinking 113,492 157,119
Impact fees 578,035 464,392
Renewal, replacement, and reserve 114,549 216,076
Total restricted assets - cash 806,076 837,587
Noncurrent assets
Unamortized loan costs 18,300 19,268
Property, plant, and equipment 6,368,419 6,267,472
Less accumulated depreciation (1,575,105) (1,400,839)
Total noncurrent assets 4,811,614 4,885,901
Total assets 6,094,451 6,259,122
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 6,448 69,541
Accrued expenses 9,850 1,683
Due to other funds 10,794 18,576
Notes payable, current portion 136,720 134,626
Revenue bonds payable, current portion 37,000 34,000
Total current liabilities 200,812 258,426
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accrued interest 20,126 20,126
Total current liabilities payable from
restricted assets 20,126 20,126
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 12,404 -
Notes payable - due after one year 2,715,768 2,850,076
Bonds payable - due after one year 1,159,980 1,197,980
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,888,152 4,048,056
Total liabilities 4,109,090 4,326,608
Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 743,846 649,951
Restricted for:
Bond retirement 93,366 136,993
Impact fees 578,035 464,392
Unrestricted 570,114 681,178
Total net assets 3 1,985,361 $ 1,832,514

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Net Assets - Sewer
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2006 2005
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,354 35,981
Accounts receivable (net) 77,140 70,952
Due from other funds 5916 5,916
Prepaid expenses 3,948 -
Total current assets 109,358 112,849
Restricted assets - cash
Bond and interest sinking 122,674 108,447
Impact fees 420,568 255,711
Renewal, replacement, and reserve 230,656 232,823
Total restricted assets - cash 773,898 596,981
Noncurrent assets
Unamortized loan costs 101,917 108,933
Capacity rights 54,187 54,186
Property, plant, and equipment 7,144,328 7,140,157
Less accumulated depreciation (1,198,506) (985,362)
Total noncurrent assets 6,101,926 6,317,914
Total assets 6,985,182 7,027,744
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 63,438 112,617
Accrued expenses 230 232
Due to other funds 393,868 267,179
Notes payable, current portion 69,567 63,635
Revenue bonds payable, current portion 27,500 26,500
Total current liabilities 554,603 470,163
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accrued interest 8,912 8,912
Total current liabilities payable from
restricted assets 8,912 8,912
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 4,123 -
Notes payable - due after one year 2,099,338 2,171,210
Bonds payable - due after one year 2,155,600 2,183,100
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,259 061 4,354,310
Total liabilities 4,822,576 4,833,385
Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 1,593,817 1,710,350
Restricted for:
Bond retirement 113,762 99,535
Impact fees 420,568 255711
Unrestricted 34,459 128,763
Total net assets $ 2,162,606 2,194,359

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Net Assets - Sanitation
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2006 2005
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,486 $ 99,984
Accounts receivable (net) 41,517 37,341
Total current assets 92,003 137,325
Restricted assets - cash
Renewal, replacement, and reserve 20,526 47,275
Total restricted assets - cash 20,526 47,275
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant, and equipment 503,797 406,209
Less accumulated depreciation (396,774) (362,741)
Total noncurrent assets 107,023 43,468
Total assets 219,552 228,068
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 23,027 44 698
Accrued expenses 2,101 2,377
Due to other funds 6,175 13,396
Total current liabilities 31,303 60,471
Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences 7,814 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 7,814 -
Total liabilities 39,117 60,471
Net assets
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 107,023 43,468
Unrestricted 73,412 124,129
Total net assets $ 180,435 $ 167,597

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Water

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005

Operating revenues
Charges for services

$ 828964 § 796,850

New installations 165,039 162,207
Reconnections 12,038 12,465
Impact fees - 2,866
Other utility income 44 824 25929
Total operating revenues 1,050,865 1,000,317
Operating expenses
Personal services 356,266 292,162
Professional services 24275 49,895
Office supplies 1,178 785
Utilities 66,257 156,575
Insurance 16,800 14,887
Repairs and maintenance 28,078 41,626
Operating supplies 26,135 34,636
Communication services 4,139 3,634
Public utility services 89,024 120,582
Transportation 309 78
Rentals 1,015 3,303
Printing and binding 1,699 1,654
Miscellaneous 16,748 5,924
Amortization 967 967
Depreciation 174,266 174,581
Bad debts 5,750 7,508
Total operating expenses 812,906 767,797
Operating income 237,959 232,520
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 14,204 12,398
Interest expense (169,316) (156,290)
Operating transfer out (30,000) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (185,112) (143,892)
Net income 52,847 88,628
Net assets - beginning 1,932,514 1,843,886

Net assets - ending

$ 1,985,361 $ 1,932,514

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Sewer
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 693130 $ 676,698
Impact fees 240,481 219,661
Total operating revenues 933,611 896,359
Operating expenses
Personal services 81,782 89,738
Professional services 16,281 31,841
Office supplies - 362
Utilities 16,944 15,320
Insurance 21,452 15,792
Repairs and maintenance 43,115 49,485
Operating supplies 44,694 51,094
Communication services 1,344 1,297
Pubilic utility services 337,036 327,469
Transportation 309 -
Loan servicing costs 26,773 27,423
Printing and binding 549 1,089
Miscellaneous 7,629 7,884
Amortization 7,016 7,016
Depreciation 213,144 213,305
Bad debts 4,258 5,257
Total operating expenses 822,326 844,372
Operating income 111,285 51,987

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest income 14,630 10,022
Interest expense (187,668) (173,724)
Operating transfer in 30,000 -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (143,038) (163,702)

Net income (loss) (31,753) (111,715)
Net assets - beginning 2,194,359 2,306,074
Net assets - ending $ 2,162,606 $ 2,194,359

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Sanitation
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 407,521 $ 387,512
Other utility income 26,034 30,143
Total operating revenues 433,555 417,655
Operating expenses
Personal services 252,042 221,454
Professional services 8,025 23,380
Office supplies - 78
Utilities 197 230
Contractual services - 12,110
Insurance 8,613 6,199
Repairs and maintenance 11,671 14,817
Operating supplies 22,975 34,445
Communication services 1,351 1,190
Tipping fees 68,197 63,734
Transportation 234 -
Rentals 8,128 17,940
Printing and binding 95 1,134
Miscellaneous 1,216 862
Depreciation 34,033 18,352
Bad debts 2,858 2,794
Total operating expenses 419,635 418,719
Operating income (loss) 13,920 (1,064)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 304 700
Interest expense (57) (155)
Operating transfer out (1,329) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,082) 545
Net income (loss) 12,838 (5619)
Net assets - beginning 167,597 168,116
Net assets - ending $ 180,435 $ 167,597

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Cash Flows - Water
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005
Operating activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 1,018,763 $ 915882
Payments to suppliers and others (339,228) (295,194)
Payments for personal services (356,266) (292,162)
Net cash provided by operating activities 323,269 328,526
Noncapital tinancing activities
Transfers out (30,000) -
Capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on revenue bonds (35,000) (25,287)
Principal paid on notes and leases (132,214) (134,131)
Interest paid on bonds, notes, and leases (169,316) (156,290)
Purchase of capital assets (100,946) (4,506)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (437,476) (320,214)
Investing activities
Interest received 14,204 12,398
Net cash provided by investing activities 14,204 12,398
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (130,003) 20,710
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 1,034,588 1,013,878
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 904,585 $ 1,034,588
Classified as cash
Current assets - cash and cash equivaients $ 98,509 $ 197,001
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 806,076 837,587
$ 904,585 $ 1,034,588
Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net operating income $ 237,959 $ 232520
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Amortization 967 967
Depreciation 174,266 174,581
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (7,484) (13,548)
Due from other funds (24,579) (70,887)
Due from other governments (39) -
Prepaid assets (7,518) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (63,092) 3,792
Accrued expenses 8,167 1,123
Compensated absences 12,404 -
Due to other funds (7,782) (22)
Total adjustments 85,310 96,006
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 323,269 $ 328526

See accompanying notes
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Cash Flows - Sewer
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005
Operating activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 927,423 $ 890,905
Payments to suppliers and others (442,703) (442,817)
Payments for personal services (81,782) (89,738)
Net cash provided by operating activities 402,938 358,350
Noncapital tinancing activities
Transfers in 30,000 -
Capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on revenue bonds (26,500) (25,000)
Principal paid on notes and leases (65,940) (58,956)
Interest paid on bonds, notes, and leases (187,668) (173,724)
Purchase of capital assets (4,170) (22,285)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (284,278) (279,965)
Investing activities
Interest received 14,630 10,022
Net cash provided by investing activities 14,630 10,022
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 163,290 88,407
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 632,962 544,555

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 796,252 $ 632,962
Classified as cash
Current assets - cash and cash equivalents $ 22,354 $ 35,981
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 773,898 596,981
$ 796,252 $ 632962
Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net operating income $ 111,285 $ 51,987
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Amortization 7,016 7,016
Depreciation 213,144 213,305
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (6,188) (9,058)
Due from other funds - 3,604
Prepaid assets (3,948) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (49,179) 20,242
Accrued expenses 4) 210
Compensated absences 4123 -
Due to other funds 126,689 71,044
Total adjustments 291,653 306,363
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 402938 $ 358,350

See accompanying notes




City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Comparative Schedule of Cash Flows - Sanitation
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005
Operating activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 429,379 $ 413185
Payments to suppliers and others (154,914) (154,333)
Payments for personal services (252,042) (221,454)
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,423 37,398
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers out (1,329) -
Capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on notes and leases - (7,640)
Interest paid on bonds, notes, and leases (57) (155)
Purchase of capital assets (97,588) (7,372)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (97,645) (15,167)
Investing activities
Interest received 304 700
Net cash provided by investing activities 304 700
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (76,247) 22,931
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 147,259 124,328
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 71,012 $ 147259
Classified as cash
Current assets - cash and cash equivalents $ 50,486 $ 99984
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 20,526 47 275
$ 71012 $ 147259
Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Net operating income $ 13,920 $ (1,064)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation 34,033 18,352
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable (4,176) (4,470)
Prepaid assets 13,968 -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (35,639) 20,308
Accrued expenses (276) 2,115
Compensated absences 7,814 -
Due to other funds (7,221) 2,157
Total adjustments 8,503 38,462
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 22,423 $ 37,398

See accompanying notes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
City of Mexico Beach, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Mexico Beach, Florida
(the City) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, and have
issued our report thereon dated February 23, 2007.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted
auditing standards, and Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued our
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, Independent
Auditors’ Report on Compliance and Internal Control over Compliance Applicable
to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs. Disclosures in those reports, which are dated February 23, 2007, should
be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local
governmental entity audits performed in the State of Fiorida and require that
certain items be addressed in this letter.

Those rules (Section 10.554 (1)(h)1.) require that we address in the management
letter, if not already addressed in the auditors’ reports on compliance and internal
controls or schedule of findings and questioned costs, whether or not
recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have been
followed. The recommendations in the preceding annual financial audit report
were corrected except as noted below under the heading Status of Prior Year
Recommendations.

As required by The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)2.), the
scope of our audit included a review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In connection with our audit,
we determined that City of Mexico Beach, Florida complied with the provisions of
Section 218.415., Florida Statutes.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554(1)(h)3.) require that we

address in the management letter any findings and recommendations to improve
financial management, accounting procedures and internal controls.
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Workers
Position Annual:Pay Incentive Pay Overtime Taxes Health Comp Retirement Total. by Dept
Mayor 9,600.00 734.40 - 10,397.40
Councilman 4,800.00 367.20 5,199.20
Counciiman 4,800.00 367.20 2 5,1998.20
Councilman 4,800.00 367.20 I 32 5,198.20
Councilman 4,800.00 367.20 | 32 5,199.20
City Administrator 70,158.40 5,367.12 3.552.12 | 462 9,366.15 88,905.79
City Clerk 54,558.40 4,173.72 1,300.00 | 359 7,283.55 67,67@
Admin. Asst.- CC 30,825.60 $ 1,221.12 2,451.57 6677.76 | 03 2,956.18 4433523 |
[Public Works Drr. 51,729.60 3,957 1,300.00 | 41 4,960.87 62,288.78
|Admin. Asst- CR 25,480.00 1,949. 7,35264 | 68 244353 7,393.39 |
Police Officer 34040 | $ 720001 $ 3,040.54 2,685. 11.277.72 ] 3,723 6,898.02 9,684.90
Police Officer ,265.60 $ 3,417.98 2,500.2 355212 | 3,476 6,441.36 48,653.35
DPS Director 19568 S 1,320.00 46814 11.277.72 | 7,269 13,469.17 95,213.04 |
Police Officer 0,619.68 | § 480.00 ] $ 2,91239 2,601.92 3,562.12 | 3,637 6,739.39 50,542.50 |
Admin, Assistant 33,508.80 2,563.42 7,352.64 | $55 803.37 44,28324 |
Police Capt. 4195464 | % 960.00 3.282.97 1,300.00 | 4,984 9,234.22 61,715.83 |
Palice Lt. 36,62568 | § 1,430.00 2,911.26 3,552.12( 4,351 8,061.31 56,9
Part-time Police Officer 14.675.00 1,122.64 -] 2,051 17.848.64
Boat Ramp Detail 3,600.00 75.40 | 3,875.40 |
Beach Patrol Detail 3,600.00 7540 | 3,.875.40
Volunteers 7,500.00 73.75 -] 8,073.75 |
Code Enfocement 28,724.80 $ 3,750.00 2,484.32 1,300.80 | $3412 % 2,754.71 42,426.6
ESU Coordinator 29,993.60 3 4,079.43 2,606.59 3.683.11 | $3.563 [ $ 2,636.69 46,562 4
Volunteers 7,717.00 590.3 -] 8,307.3
Buitding Maint Worker 6,873.60 500.00 2,094.0 7,352.64 | 2,047 2,577.18 41,444 50 |
Building Maint Worker 6,873.60 500.00 ,094.0: 1,300.00] 2,047 2577.18 35,391.86
Water Superintendent 8,937.60 1,145.48 ,066.36 3,552.12 2,619 3,734.12 53,054.68
Water Admin. 42,432.00 - 3,246.05 11,277.72 $280 4,069.23 61,305.00
Sanitation Worker 28,579.20 600.00 2,232.21 1,300.00 7,330 2,740.75 42,782.16
Supervisor 38,837.60 1,248.75 3.074.26 7,352.64 9,987 3,734.12 64,334.37
itation Driver 21,985.60 612.00 1,728.72 1,300.00 5,639 2,108.42 33,373.74
| Sanitation Worker 3,712.00 625.80 1.861.84 3,552.1 6,082 ,273.98 38,107.74
anitation Worker 7,435.20 721.20 .1563.96 3.552.1 7,037 ,631.04 43,530.52
anitation Worker 7,601.60 00.00 ,144.69 11,277.72 ] 7.037 631.04 1,292.05
ewer Maint, 9,998.40 1,306.50 ,169.82 ,300.00 1,997 ,835.85 1,597.57
ewer Maint. 24,918.40 27.80 ,167.20 ,552.12 | 1,378 2,389.67 5,133.19
Vehicle Super 3,650.40 3,355.04 823.27 6,677.76 2,556 3,217.48 52,179.95
Vehicle Maint. Worker 28,057.60 2,905.76 ,445.20 3,652.12] 2,214 2,786.62 42,961.30
Street Lead Worker 29,099.20 375.00 2,254.78 72.00 | 3,506 2,790.61 38,097.59
Street Worker 26,603.20 75.00 2,063.83 72.00 3,205 2,551.25 34,870.28
Street Worker 2,984.00 250.00 1.777.40 3,552,12 2,769 2,204.17 33.536@
Canal Worker 2,011.20 2,400.00 263246 3.552.12 $10,537 3.069.87 54,20265 |
Canat Worker 3,030.40 2,400.00 710.43 6,677.76 $10,872 ,167.62 58,858.21
P & R Worker 27,31040 500.00 127.50 3,552.12 $3,009 ,619.07 9,118.09
P & R Worker 25771.20 500.00 ,009.75 7,352.64 $2,840 ,471.46 40,945.05
1,249575.28 | $ 4,910.00 40,069.79 $9,125.03 158,760.71 $133,233 144,229.25 1,829,903.06
— —
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Sheri Martin Admin. Utility Billing S 42,432.00
Kevin Martin Sewer Superintendent S 39,998.40
Jerome Henderson Sanitation Supervisor S 38,937.60
Tim Coulter Canal Maintenance S 33,030.40
Guy Hall DPS Chief S  61,195.68
Mary Leonard Water Superintendent S 38,937.60
Pam Madrid Parks & Recreation Supervisor | $  27,310.40
Dale Addison Vehicle Maintenance S 29,057.60
Richard Julian Sanitation Worker S 28,579.20
Laura Metcalf Admin Asst. Police Dept. S 33,508.80
Troy Williams Public Works Director S 51,729.60
James Norris Captain S  41,954.64
William Nixon Street Maintenance Worker S 26,603.20
Rodney McGee Sanitation Driver $ 27,435.20
Ernie Rodgers Sanitation Driver S 27,601.60
Deborah Everett Police Officer $  29,265.60
William Cathey Mayor S 9,600.00
Diana Epple ESU Coordinator S 29,993.60
Joseph Spears Head Mechanic $  33,550.40
Robert Young General Maintenance S 26,873.60
Wendy Summers Admin Asst - Cash Receipts S  25,480.00
Judith Carter Admin Asst. - City Clerk S 30,825.60
Gary Perkins Canal Dredge Operator S  32,011.20
George Desrosier Police Officer S 31,340.40
Kenneth Middleton Sanitation Worker S 23,712.00
Deborah McLeod City Clerk $  54,558.40
Karry Kimbler Police Lieutenant $ 36,625.68
Jack Mullen City Councilman S 4,800.00
Chris Hubbard City Administrator $ 70,158.40
Carol Davis Parks & Recreation Worker S 25,771.20
Robert Ginsberg Councilman S 4,800.00
Jay Jecha Code Enforcement Officer S 28,724.80
Philip Hall Street Supervisor S 29,099.20
Willie Smith Jr. Sewer Maintenance S 24,918.40
Tommy Davis General Maintenance S  26,873.60
Charles Williams Street Maintenance Worker S  25,625.60
Jonathan Turner Police Officer $ 30,619.68
Curtis Dale Councilman S 4,800.00
Jesse Burket Police Officer S 28,828.80
Gary Woodham Councilman S 4,800.00
Mark Brewer Sanitation Worker S 21,985.60




06-01 Record storage and retrieval (prior vear finding 05-02)

During our audit we noticed that accounting records were not easily located and the filing and
the established record policies were not yet fully functional. We recommend that the following
steps be taken:

e Decide on a systematic manner of filing documents, e.g., prenumbered sales invoices
and receiving reports filed consecutively by number, vendor bills filed alphabetically by
vendor name, journal entries filed by month, etc.

* Describe the system in the accounting manual or post a description on the filing cabinets
so employees will know how to find and refile documents.

* Institute use of sign-out cards to be filled out when a document is removed from a file,
showing who took the record. The card should be placed in the file in place of the
removed document.

» Establish a policy specifying which records should be retained permanently, which
records should be kept only for a given period before being destroyed, and how long the
period of time should be for the various documents' termination.

* Decide on when unneeded records should be removed to other storage areas to create
room for needed records. For example, some companies keep the current and prior year
records in the accounting department or in storage rooms on the premises and store
older records in off-premises warehouses, or some files may be stored on microfiche.

* Assign personnel the responsibility of periodically cleaning out the files in accordance
with the established policy.

06-02 Personnel files should be maintained for each employee (prior year finding 05-05)

While conducting our audit, we noted that many personnel files contain data that is either old or
incomplete. Maintaining current personnel files is an important internal control. Complete and
current personnel files should be established and maintained for each employee. A new policy
was created for employee files. In conjunction with the policy, a checklist was created showing
the minimum of information that should be maintained in each employee’s file. We suggest that
all employee files are reviewed for the required information and that the files be updated.

06-03 Software (prior year finding 05-06)

During the previous year and in the current year, the City continues to encounter extensive
problems with the accounting software program it uses. It appears there are inherent limitations
in the software that results in certain postings and transactions to be improperly recorded in the
general ledger.

We recommend the City pursue options for new accounting software packages and implement a

change as soon as practicable. We would be pleased to provide the City with a number of
contact individuals at local City Halls in the area to view these software applications.
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06-04 Deficit in operations (prior year finding 05-10)

The sewer fund continues to report a deficit in operations. The deficit amounts were $31,573 for
the year ended September 30, 2006, $111,715 for the prior year, and $1 93,924 for the fiscal
year 2004.

06-05 Sinking fund and reserve requirements must be maintained

The cash balance in the sinking fund and reserve accounts must meet or exceed the required
balance. There should be a periodic review of the required amounts and reconciliation to the
cash balances. During our audit procedures we noted that the balances in these accounts were
less than the required balance.

06-06 Need for improved accounting and financial management. general ledger and financial
statement

The equity for each fund should be reviewed monthly to determine if the balance is correct.
Additionally, it is important for all general journal entries to be reviewed before being posted,
and monthly financial statements should be prepared for management review. During our audit
procedures, it was noted that all of the equity accounts were out of balance and entries for
budget purposes were being made incorrectly and affecting the general ledger.

06-07 Grant management

The grant files should be complete and requests for reimbursement should be reviewed. During
our audit, it was noted that copies of invoices supporting grant reimbursements were not in the
grant files and a reimbursement requested exceeded the amount invoiced for services.
Reimbursement requests should be reviewed for accuracy before being submitted to the grantor
agency.

06-08 Accounts receivable subsidiary ledger

During the audit we noted that there was not a subsidiary ledger that tied to the general ledger
balance on September 30, 2006. It is important to maintain complete accounting records. We
also suggest that the subsidiary ledger is reconciled to the general ledger each month.

Status of Prior Year Recommendations

05-02 See Current Year Recommendations 06-01

05-05 See Current Year Recommendations 06-02

05-06 See Current Year Recommendations 06-03

05-10 See Current Year Recommendations 06-04
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The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)4.) require disclosure in the management
letter of the following matters if not already addressed in the auditors’ report on compliance and
internal control and are not clearly inconsequential: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations and
contractual provisions that have occurred or are likely to have occurred: (2) improper or illegal
expenditures; (3) improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required
disclosures from the financial statements); (4) failures to properly record financial transactions:
and (5) other inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations or instances of fraud discovered by, or that
come to the attention of, the auditor. Our audit disclosed no matters that are required to be
disclosed by Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554(1)(h)4.).

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)5.) require that the name or official title
and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity
be disclosed in the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The City was established in 1967, under a Charter in accordance with the Laws of Florida 67-
1717. There were no component units related to the City.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)6.a.), a statement must be
included as to whether or not the local government entity has met one or more of the conditions
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined
that the City of Mexico Beach, Florida did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218.503 (1), Florida Statutes.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)6.b.), we determined that
the annual financial report for the City of Mexico Beach, Florida for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, was filed with the Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section
218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, and is in agreement with annual financial audit report for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)6.c.) and 10.556(7)), we
applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor
the entity’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

This management letter is intended solely for the information of the City of Mexico Beach, Florida
and management, and the State of Florida Office of the Auditor General, and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CGAU, /?57?4.) ‘5‘ sznﬁ/a.a..n_)_, Lot C.

Panama City, Florida
February 23, 2007
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
City of Mexico Beach, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Mexico Beach,
Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated February 23, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal control over financial reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we
noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions
involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the
design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the
financial statements. The reportable condition noted is described as follows:

Need to maintain and reconciling subsidiary ledgers

Maintaining and reconciling subsidiary ledgers to the general ledger is an
effective form of internal control over the general ledger totals. Utility billing
supplies a significant portion of revenues to the City. Reconciling the subsidary
ledger ensures that revenues and receipts have been properly recorded.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that
would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
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control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we
consider the reportable condition as described above to be a material weakness.

We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we
have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated February 23, 2007.

Compliance and other matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and
specific legislative or regulatory bodies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Cdx—u, /?57?4) ‘6‘ M, Lot .C

Panama City, Florida
February 23, 2007
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P | 8507846733 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
F | 850 784 4866 APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
wwwkcricpa.com OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
City of Mexico Beach, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Mexico Beach, Florida, with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2006. The City of Mexico Beach, Florida’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Mexico
Beach, Florida’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the City of Mexico Beach, Florida’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards, OMB
Circular A-133, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City of Mexico Beach, Florida’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City of Mexico Beach, Florida’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Mexico Beach, Florida, complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each
of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2006.
However, the resuits of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
. honcompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported
AR e forChafims | in- accordance with OMB  Circular A-133 and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2006-1.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Mexico Beach, Florida is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the City of Mexico Beach, Florida's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants caused by error or fraud that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City’s management, City
Council, and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Cd,ua, /?(:??q_) _€‘ 52»1544,,_,,_;, Let..C,

Panama City, Florida
February 23, 2007
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2006

CFDA Contract/
Federal Awards Programs No. Grant Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Homeland Security -
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Passed through the State of Florida
Department of Community Affairs
Disaster Relief Funding Agreement 97.036 05-PA-G-01-13-02-616 $ 519,399
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 519,399
Note:
(1) The schedule of expenditures of federal awards was prepared on the modified

accounting.
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City of Mexico Beach, Florida
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2006

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weakness(es) identified? X_yes ___ no
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes _X_none
reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ___yes X no
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs
Material weakness(es) identified? __yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? X _ yes ___ none
reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section .510(a)
of Circular A-133? ___yes X _no
Identification of major federal award programs
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program
97.036  Disaster Relief Funding
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ___yes X_no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Need to maintain and reconciling subsidiary ledgers

Maintaining and reconciling subsidiary ledgers to the general ledger is an effective form of internal
Section Il - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings

2006-1

Grant reimbursement requests and subsequent reimbursements exceeded the amount of the
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P.O. Box 13425 - Mexico Beach, Florida - 32410
PHONE: 850-648-5700 - pax. 850-648-8768

April 2, 2007

Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC
P.O. Box 149
Panama City, FL 32405

RE:  Fiscal Year 2006 Audit

Status of Prior Year Recommendations

Prior year recommendations have been resolved except as noted in current year
recommendations.

Current Year Recommendations

1.. Record storage and retrieval

The City Administrator and City Clerk are actively reviewing and organizing all
City records and hope to have all records in order by the end of Fiscal Year 2007.

2. Personnel files should be maintained for each employee

The City Clerk and Administrative Assistant have created a checklist for each
employee file to ensure that all information for each file is accurate and up to
date.

3. Software

The City is researching various software programs to correct this issue and
anticipates purchasing new software in Fiscal Year 2008.

118 N. 14th St. Mexico Beach, F1. 32410




Fiscal Year 2006 Audit
April 2, 2007
Page Two

4. Deficit in operations

As stated in prior year recommendations, the City implemented a rate increase of
9.5% to offset any future deficits and will continue to closely monitor this

situation.

5.  Sinking fund and reserve requirements must be maintained

The City understands the necessity to closely monitor and maintain the Sinking

Funds and will ensure that sufficient reserve requirements are met.

6. Need for improved accounting and financial management, general ledger and

financial statement

This issue is in relation to software issues in that information in the general ledger
is not consistently included in cvery report and staff believes that upon installation
of new software, this matter will be resolved. Until this time, the City will closely

monitor all transactions and correct any deficiencies in the future.

7. Grant Management

Any future grant requests will be reviewed by the City Clerk and the City
Administrator prior to any requests for payment to ensure accurate submission

requests to the grantors.

8. Accounts receivable subsidiary ledger

The accounts receivable subsidiars ledger is reviewed and balanced 3 ainst the
fomd

Utility Billing detail reports monthly.
If additional information is required, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

William A. Cathey, Mayor

/dm



